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MEMORANDUM 

TO: Alcoholic Beverage Control Board DATE: August 17, 2023 
 

RE: #301 dba The Office  
FROM: Carrie Craig, RLS  

 
 

Statutory & 
Regulatory 

 

Authority: 
AS 04.11.400(k): “The board may allow the relocation of an existing beverage dispensary license under AS 
04.11.090 to a restaurant, eating place, or hotel, motel, resort, or similar business that contains a restaurant or 
eating place, in a borough with a population of 60,000 or more if the governing body of the borough approves 
the relocation. However, if the relocation of the license is into or within an incorporated city in the borough, 
the board may not approve the relocation unless the governing bodies of both the borough and the 
incorporated city approve the relocation. The board may allow not more than three relocations in a borough 
under this subsection each decade. In this subsection, “decade” means each 10-year period beginning April 1 in 
a year ending in zero.” 
 

3 AAC 304.196. Transfer of location of licenses under AS 04.11.400(k): “(a) An application for a transfer 
under AS 04.11.400(k) must comply with the requirements for notice under AS 04.11.280 and 04.11.290, as 
applicable. The criteria for denial of relocation under AS 04.11.340, and for denial of transfer of a license to 
another person under AS 04.11.360 apply to a transfer under AS 04.11.400(k). 
 
(b) If the board approves the transfer under AS 04.11.400(k) of a beverage dispensary license, the license 
becomes a license of the municipality where it is relocated. The license may be transferred to a new location and 
new person within the receiving municipality. If a license is transferred with a security interest under AS 
04.11.360(4)(B) and 04.11.670, the retransfer back to the previous owner may not be made to the location of 
the former municipality. 
 
(c) A license that is located in a municipality as a result of annexation is not counted as a new license for 
purposes of AS 04.11.400(k).  
 
(d) When the board receives applications for a transfer that exceeds the number allowed per decade under AS 
04.11.400(k), the board will approve the completed application that the board first received, if the application 
meets other applicable requirements of AS 04 and this chapter.” 
 
3 AAC 304.197. Process for transfer of a beverage dispensary license under AS 04.11.400(k): “(a) Within 10 
days after receiving an application to transfer a beverage dispensary license under AS 04.11.400(k), the board 
will notify the affected municipalities in writing. In the notice, the board will include the date the complete 
application was received by the board, the license number, the present or previous business name of the license 
to be transferred, the names of the transferee and the transferor if applicable, and the proposed location of the 
license. 
 
(b) Each municipality affected by the transfer request under AS 04.11.400(k) may respond to the notice under 
(a) of this section within 60 days after receipt. A municipality may request an extension of time to respond. The 
board may grant a request for extension up to 120 additional days. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
(c) In addition to other requirements in AS 04 and this chapter for the transfer of a beverage dispensary license, 
both municipalities must agree to a transfer under AS 04.11.400(k) for the transfer to be approved. If either 
municipality does not respond to the notice within the time allowed under (b) of this section, the transfer 
request will be denied.” 
 

 

Background: 
On January 4, 2023 AMCO received an email from the licensee that their lease was cancelled at 1987 E Bogard Roat, Units E & 
F in the Matanuska – Susitna Borough. Staff informed the license that a transfer, at least to “no premises”, was required as well 
as surrendering the license. The licensee was also instructed they could no longer utilize event permits at other locations to 
continue operations. 
 
A transfer to 290 North Yenlo Street, Suite 37 in the City of Wasilla, which is the same location as current license #6003 Meta 
& Rose, a restaurant/eating place license, was submitted to AMCO.  
 
Issue #1: A transfer from a borough to a city, beverage dispensary to restaurant eating place is contemplated in AS 04.11.400(k) - 
above. There have been zero transfers from Matanuska – Susitna Borough in the last ten years. Historically, the ABC Board has 
approved transfers for AS 04.11.400(k) for the Fairbanks North Star Borough to either the City of Fairbanks or City of North 
Pole. These occurred in 2015.  
 

Issue #2: Can a current beverage dispensary license operate separately, yet in the middle of another licensed premises? If the 
board approves this transfer of location; staff would require an AB-14: Change of Licensed Premised from Meta & Rose to 
remove the bar area from their current premises.  
 

Staff Recommendation:  
The ABC Board considers the information before them and determine if this transfer is compliant with AS 04 and 3 AAC 304. 
 

Attachments: AB-01 
   AB-02 
   AB-03 
   Sublease & Commercial Lease 
    
 

 
 
 
 
 


























































































